
 
 
Democratic Services Section    
Legal and Civic Services Department 
Belfast City Council 
City Hall 
Belfast  
BT1 5GS 
 
 
 
8th November, 2023 
 
MEETING OF THE LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
Dear Alderman/Councillor, 

 

The above-named Committee will meet in Hybrid format, both in the Lavery Room - City 

Hall, and via Teams, on Wednesday, 15th November, 2023 at 5.15 pm, for the 

transaction of the business noted below. 

 

You are requested to attend. 

 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
John Walsh 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
AGENDA: 
 
1. Routine Matters   
 
 (a) Apologies   

 
 (b) Minutes   

 
 (c) Declarations of Interest   

 
 (d) Schedule of Meetings 2024  (Pages 1 - 2) 

 
2. Delegated Matters   
 
 (a) Licences Issued Under Delegated Authority  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
 (b) HMO Licences Issued Under Delegated Authority  (Pages 7 - 10) 

 
 (c) Application for a New Licence to operate a House of Multiple Occupation for 

6 Collingwood Avenue  (Pages 11 - 36) 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 
- 2 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

Subject: Schedule of Meetings 2024 

 

Date: 
15th November, 2023 
 

Reporting Officer: Louise McLornan, Democratic Services Officer 
 

Contact Officer: 
 

Louise McLornan, Democratic Services Officer 

 

Restricted Reports     

Is this report restricted? Yes  No  

If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?                                                    

After Committee Decision     

After Council Decision     

Some time in the future     

Never     

     

 

Call-in     

 
Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                  
 

Yes  No  

 
1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 

 

 

 

To advise the Committee of the dates and times of the meetings of the Licensing Committee 
between January and December, 2024. 
 

2.0 Recommendations 
 

 The Committee is requested to approve the schedule of meetings for the Licensing 
Committee as outlined. 
 

3.0 Main report 
 

 
 
 
3.1 

Key Issues 

 
The monthly meeting of the Licensing Committee is normally held at 5.15 pm on the 3rd 
Wednesday of each month.  

 X 

 

 

 

 

X  

Page 1

Agenda Item 1d



 
3.2 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
 
3.6 
 
 
 

 
Accordingly, the following dates have been identified for meetings of the Licensing 
Committee for the period from January to December, 2024. 
 
Wednesday, 17th January 
Wednesday, 21st February 
Wednesday, 20th March 
Wednesday, 17th April 
Wednesday, 15th May 
Wednesday, 19th June 
(recess in July) 
Wednesday, 21st August 
Wednesday, 18th September 
Wednesday, 16th October 
Wednesday, 20th November 
Wednesday, 11th December 
 
(All meetings will commence at 5.15 pm) 

 

Financial and Resource Implications 

None associated with this report. 

 

Equality or Good Relations Implications 

None associated with this report. 

 

4.0 Appendices – Documents Attached 
 
None associated with this report. 
 

 

Page 2



  
LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject: 
 
Licences Issued Under Delegated Authority 
 

Date: 15 November 2023 

Reporting Officer: Stephen Hewitt, Building Control Manager, Ext. 2435 

Contact Officer: James Cunningham, Senior Licensing Officer, Ext. 3375 

 

Restricted Reports     

Is this report restricted? Yes  No  

If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?                                                    

After Committee Decision     

After Council Decision     

Some time in the future     

Never     

     

 

Call-in     

 
Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                  
 

Yes  No  

 

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 
 

 
1.1 
 
 
 
 

 
Under the Scheme of Delegation, the Director of Planning and Building Control is responsible 
for exercising all powers in relation to the issue, but not refusal, of Permits and Licences, 
excluding provisions relating to the issue of Licences where adverse representations have been 
made.  

2.0 Recommendations 
 

 
2.1 
 
 

  
The Committee is requested to note the applications that have been issued under the Scheme 
of Delegation. 
 
 
 

 X 

 

 

 

 

X  

Page 3

Agenda Item 2a



3.0 Main report 

 
 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Key Issues 
 
Under the terms of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) (Northern Ireland) Order 
1985 the following Entertainments Licences were issued since your last meeting. 
 

Premises and Location 
Type of 

Application 
Applicant 

Andersonstown Social Club,  
8e South Link, Belfast, BT11 8GX. 

Renewal & 
Variation 

Mr Gerard Hawkins 

Belfast Indoor Bowls, 115 Milltown 
Road, Shaw's Bridge, Belfast,  
BT8 7XP. 

Renewal Mr Chris Mulholland 

Belvoir Park Golf Club,  
73-75 Church Road, 
Newtownbreda, Belfast, BT8 7AN. 

Renewal Mr Gerard Wilson 

Belvoir Players Rehearsal Studio,  
94 Belvoir Drive, Belfast, BT8 7FR. 

Grant Mr Roger Dane 

Catch My Pal Billiards & Snooker 
Club, 191a Kingsway, Belfast, 
BT17 9RY. 

Renewal Mr Samuel Brown 

Cathedral Park (Buoys Park),  
Academy Street, Belfast, BT1. 

Renewal 
(Marquee) 

Mr David Sales,  
Belfast City Council 

Cathedral Park (Buoys Park), 
Academy Street, Belfast, BT1. 

Renewal 
(Outdoor) 

Mr David Sales,  
Belfast City Council 

Drumglass Park, Lisburn Road,  
Belfast, BT9 6JF. 

Renewal 
(Marquee) 

Mr David Sales,  
Belfast City Council 

Drumglass Park, Lisburn Road,  
Belfast, BT9 6JF. 

Renewal 
(Outdoor) 

Mr David Sales,  
Belfast City Council 

Duncairn Culture & Arts Centre, 
Duncairn Complex, Duncairn 
Avenue, Antrim Road, Belfast, 
BT14 6BP. 

Renewal 
Mr David Gargan,  

174 Trust 

Falls Park, Falls Road, Belfast,  
BT12 6AN. 

Renewal 
(Marquee) 

Mr David Sales,  
Belfast City Council 

Falls Park, Falls Road, Belfast, 
BT12 6AN. 

Renewal 
(Outdoor) 

Mr David Sales,  
Belfast City Council 

Forthriver Bowling And Tennis 
Club, 104A Woodvale Road, 
Belfast, BT13 3BU. 
 

Renewal Mr Terence McGrath 

Lower Crescent Open Space,  
Lower Crescent, Belfast, BT7 1NS. 
 

Renewal 
Mr David Sales,  

Belfast City Council 

Northwood Linear Park, Shore 
Road, Belfast, BT15 3LZ. 
 
 

Renewal 
Mr David Sales,  

Belfast City Council 
 

Page 4



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 

3.3 
 

 
3.4 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
3.6 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
Under the terms of the Betting, Gaming, Lotteries and Amusements (Northern Ireland) Order 
1985 no Amusement Permits were issued since your last meeting. 
 
Under the terms of the Cinemas (Northern Ireland) Order 1991 no Cinema Licences were issued 
since your last meeting. 
 
Under the terms of the Petroleum Consolidation Act 1929 no Petroleum Licences were issued 
since your last meeting. 
 
Under the terms of the Street Trading Act (Northern Ireland) 2001 no Street Trading Licences 
were issued since your last meeting. 
 
Under the terms of the Road Traffic Regulation (Northern Ireland) Order 1997 the following Road 
Closure Orders were made since your last meeting. 
 
 

Premises and Location 
Type of 

Application 
Applicant 

Ormeau Park, Ormeau Road, 
Belfast, BT7 3GG. 

Renewal 
(Marquee) 

Mr David Sales,  
Belfast City Council 

Ormeau Park, Ormeau Road, 
Belfast, BT7 3GG. 

Renewal 
(Outdoor) 

Mr David Sales,  
Belfast City Council 

Pairc Nua Chollann,  
Stewartstown Road, Belfast, BT17. 

Renewal 
Mr David Sales,  

Belfast City Council 

St Galls G.A.C,  
4-12 Milltown Row, Belfast, BT12 
6EU. 

Renewal Mr Brendan Gallagher 

The Monico Bars,  
17 Lombard Street, Belfast, BT1 
1RB. 

Renewal 
Mr Padraic Brennan,  

Pacon Inns Ltd 

W5, Odyssey Pavilion, 2 Queens 
Quay, Belfast, BT3 9QQ. 

Renewal Mr Adrian Doyle 

Wedderburn Playing Fields,  
5 Wedderburn Gardens, Belfast,  
BT10 0FZ. 

Renewal 
(Marquee) 

Mr David Sales,  
Belfast City Council 

Wedderburn Playing Fields,  
5 Wedderburn Gardens, Belfast,  
BT10 0FZ. 

Renewal 
(Outdoor) 

Mr David Sales,  
Belfast City Council 

Location 
Type of 

Activity 

Date and Hours 

permitted 
Applicant 

Ormeau Embankment  5K & 10K Run 
Sun 22 October 2023 

09:00 – 13:00 
Ms Beth Healy 

Lord Street Filming 
Tues 24 October 2023 

08:00 – 19:00 

Mr Robert 

Huffam 

Castleward Park Filming 

Mon 30 October & Tues 
31 October 2023 

07:00 – 17:00 
Wed 1, Thurs 2, Fri 3, 

Mon 6, Tues 7 & Wed 8 
November 2023 
11:00 – 01:00 

Mr Robert 

Huffam 

Page 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.7 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
3.8 
 
 
 
3.9 

 
 

Under the terms of the Licensing of Pavement Cafés Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 the following 
Pavement Café Licences were issued since your last meeting. 
 

 
Financial & Resource Implications 
 
None 
 
Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Assessment 
 
There are no issues associated with this report. 
 

Little Donegall Street, Donegall 

Street, William Street, Church 

Street 

Filming 

Little Donegall Street 
Wed 1 November 2023 

16:00 – 00:00 
Donegall Road 

Wed 1 November 2023 
19:30 – 04:00 

William Street and 
Church Street 

Wed 15 November 2023 
07:00 – 17:00 

 

Mr Robert 

Huffam 

High Street, Bridge Street, Church 

Lane, Skipper Street, Queen’s 

Square, Victoria Street 

Filming 
Tues 7 November 2023 

21:00 – 01:00 

Mr Robert 

Huffam 

Little Donegall Street, Donegall 

Lane, William Street, Church Street 
Filming 

William Street & 
Church Street 

Wed 8 November 2023 
11:00 – 18:00 

Little Donegall Street & 
Donegall Lane 

Wed 8 November 2023 
18:00 – 23:00 

 

Mr Robert 

Huffam 

Premises and Location 
Type of 

Application 
Applicant 

Accidental Theatre,  
12-13 Shaftesbury Square, Belfast, 
BT2  

Grant Mr Richard Lavery 

Pret a Manger,  
11 Donegall Square West, Belfast, 
BT1  

Grant Ms Jan Barnes 

Yolo Cafe, 15 Lombard Street, 
Belfast, BT1 1RB. 

Grant Mr Wei Song, Yolo Cafe Ltd 

 

Page 6



  
LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject: 

 
Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) Licences Issued Under 
Delegated Authority  

Date: 15 November 2023 

Reporting Officer: Kevin Bloomfield, NIHMO Manager 

Contact Officers: 
Kevin Bloomfield, NIHMO Manager 
Helen Morrissey, City Protection Manager 
 

 

Restricted Reports     

Is this report restricted? Yes  No  

If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?                                                    

After Committee Decision     

After Council Decision     

Some time in the future     

Never     

     

 

Call-in     

 
Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                  
 

Yes  No  

 

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 
 

 
1.1 
 
 
 
 

 
Under the Scheme of Delegation, the Director of City & Neighbourhood Services Department is 
responsible for exercising all powers in relation to the issue and variation, but not refusal, of 
HMO Licences, excluding provisions relating to the issue of HMO Licences where adverse 
representations have been made. Those applications which were dealt with under the Scheme 
are listed below. 

2.0 Recommendations 
 

2.1 
 

The Committee is requested to note the applications that have been issued under the Scheme 
of Delegation during October 2023. 
 

 X 

 

 

 

 

 X 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2b



3.0 Main report 
 

 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Key Issues 
 
Under the terms of the Houses in Multiple Occupation Act (Northern Ireland) 2016 the following 
HMO Licences were issued during October 2023. 
 

Premise Name Licensee Ward 

Housing 
Management Areas 
(HMAs) 

47 Broadway 
Nirvana Space 
Limited FALLS NONE 

1 Kilburn Street Mr Jim Logan BLACKSTAFF NONE 
Flat 3, 14 India 
Street 

PKS Property 
Rentals Ltd CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

Flat 2, 14 India 
Street 

PKS Property 
Rentals Ltd CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

Flat 1 ,14 India 
Street 

PKS Property 
Rentals Ltd CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

Flat 2, 98 University 
Avenue 

P&S Property 
Rentals Limited CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

787 Crumlin Road Mr Edward Jackson LEGONIEL NONE 
8 Stranmillis 
Gardens Mr William Greeves CENTRAL 

STRANMILLIS HMO 
2/19 

63 Jerusalem Street Mr Keith Gallagher CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

50 Ethel Street 
Earney Properties NI 
Ltd WINDSOR 

MEADOWBANK HMO 
2/15 

61 Dunluce Avenue Mr Gabriel McCaffrey WINDSOR 
ULSTERVILLE HMO 
2/21 

4 Rathcool Street Mr Mark Rourke WINDSOR ADELAIDE HMO 2/01 

20 Ireton Street Mr John MacMahon CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 
20 Florenceville 
Avenue 

Ardmore Rentals 
limited ROSETTA NONE 

20 Carmel Street Ms Suzanne Breen CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

47 Elaine Street Benkate Ltd CENTRAL 
STRANMILLIS HMO 
2/19 

35 Delhi Street Mrs Mary Kelly ORMEAU 
BALLYNAFEIGH HMO 
2/03 

30 Fitzwilliam 
Square 

Glenelly Investments 
Ltd CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

60 Jerusalem Street 
D.M Property Estates 
Limited CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

116 Ashley Avenue Mr Andrew Hogg WINDSOR 
ULSTERVILLE HMO 
2/21 

22 Agincourt Street Mr Shane McCarney CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 
Apartment 4 College 
Gate, 29 College 
Square North Mr Gerard Catney FALLS NONE 

26 St Ives Gardens J23M LLP STRANMILLIS 
SANDYMOUNT HMO 
2/17 

141 Alexandra Park 
Avenue WB Rankin Limited DUNCAIRN NONE 

316 Donegall Road Mr Raymond Wilson BLACKSTAFF NONE 
67 Alexandra Park 
Avenue WB Rankin Limited DUNCAIRN NONE 

Page 8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12 Cadogan Park 

ABBEYFIELD 
BELFAST SOCIETY 
LIMITED THE WINDSOR NONE 

102 Dunluce 
Avenue Mr Donald Woodrow WINDSOR 

ULSTERVILLE HMO 
2/21 

125 Ebor Street Mrs Laura Steenson BLACKSTAFF NONE 

10 Euterpe Street Mrs Judith Hood BLACKSTAFF 
DONEGALL ROAD 
HMO 2/07 

5 Fitzroy Avenue 
Kennedy Residential 
Ltd CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

28 Cairo Street 
Apex property 
developments ltd CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

18 Cairo Street Mr Declan Boyle CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

7b Cameron Street 

Seaforth Property 
Development 
Company Ltd CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

7a Cameron Street 

Seaforth Property 
Development 
Company Ltd CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

2 Penrose Street Mr Anthony Kelly CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

2 Sandhurst Road Mr Trevor Matthews CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

53 Surrey Street 
Mrs Alison 
McAreavey WINDSOR 

MEADOWBANK HMO 
2/15 

7 Clifton Crescent 
Mr Brendan 
McAleavey WATER WORKS NONE 

2 Ardenlee Way 
Miss Tanvi Emma 
Roberts RAVENHILL NONE 

12 Malone Avenue Ms Laura McVeigh WINDSOR 
EGLANTINE HMO 
2/09 

Bell House, 10 
Kings Road 

ABBEYFIELD 
BELFAST SOCIETY 
LIMITED THE KNOCK NONE 

23 Palestine Street Mr John McCotter CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 
Flat 6, 97 Eglantine 
Avenue Mr Roger Gribbin WINDSOR 

EGLANTINE HMO 
2/09 

Thorndale House 
(Willow Block), 
Duncairn Avenue The Salvation Army WATER WORKS NONE 
Flat 3, 75 Eglantine 
Avenue Mr Michael Holmes WINDSOR 

EGLANTINE HMO 
2/09 

Flat 2, 75 Eglantine 
Avenue Mr Michael Holmes WINDSOR 

EGLANTINE HMO 
2/09 

Flat 1, 75 Eglantine 
Avenue Mr Michael Holmes WINDSOR 

EGLANTINE HMO 
2/09 

57 Damascus Street 
Mrs Siobhan 
Corcoran CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

48 Donnybrook 
Street Mr Joseph Cassidy WINDSOR 

EDINBURGH ST HMO 
2/08 

Flat 2, 16 Lawrence 
Street Mr Mark O'Hare CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

47 Carmel Street Mrs Clare Mooney CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 

28 Clifton Crescent 
Mr Kieran 
McElvanna WATER WORKS NONE 

15 Haypark Avenue Mr Tom Brewster ORMEAU 
BALLYNAFEIGH HMO 
2/03 

223 Roden Street Mrs Sharon Farquhar BLACKSTAFF NONE 

Page 9



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
3.3 

5 Annadale Square 
Ms Patricia 
Cunningham ROSETTA NONE 

28 Oceanic Avenue Mr Damian McArdle DUNCAIRN NONE 

26 Melrose Street Mr Richard Archibald WINDSOR 
EDINBURGH ST HMO 
2/08 

Flat 2, 8 Dunluce 
Avenue 

Mrs Stephanie 
Hanna WINDSOR 

ULSTERVILLE HMO 
2/21 

20 Dromara Street 
Mr Conor 
McCullaugh CENTRAL 

LOWER ORMEAU 
HMO 2/13 

36 Annadale Green Mr Sean Smyth ROSETTA NONE 
Flat 2, 10 Wellington 
Park Avenue Sark Properties LLP WINDSOR 

EGLANTINE HMO 
2/09 

68 Beech Heights 
Miss Charlotte 
Maginnis ROSETTA NONE 

35 Crocus Street Mr Donal Kennedy CLONARD NONE 

194 Ormeau Road Mr Martin Timoney CENTRAL 
LOWER ORMEAU 
HMO 2/13 

17 University 
Avenue Mr Sean McElroy CENTRAL HOLYLAND HMO 2/22 
34 Donnybrook 
Street Mr Garth Loughrin WINDSOR 

EDINBURGH ST HMO 
2/08 

33 Crocus Street Mr Robert McAlea CLONARD NONE 

23 Ethel Street Mr Leonard Marken WINDSOR 
MEADOWBANK HMO 
2/15 

16 Strandview 
Street Mr Lorcan Maneely STRANMILLIS 

STRANMILLIS HMO 
2/19 

3 Stranmillis 
Gardens 

Bertnet Residential 
Limited CENTRAL 

STRANMILLIS HMO 
2/19 

21 Donnybrook 
Street Mr David Allison WINDSOR 

EDINBURGH ST HMO 
2/08 

 
 
Financial & Resource Implications 
 
None 
 
Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Assessment 
 
There are no issues associated with this report. 
 

 

Page 10



 

 
LICENSING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Subject: 

Application for a New Licence to operate a House of Multiple 
Occupation for 6 Collingwood Avenue, Belfast, BT7 1QT 

 
Date: 15 November 2023 

 
Reporting Officer: Kevin Bloomfield, HMO Unit Manager, Ext. 5910 

 
Contact Officer: 

 
Kevin Bloomfield, HMO Unit Manager, Ext. 5910 
 
Nora Largey, City Solicitor, Ext. 6049 

 

Is this report restricted? Yes  No  

 
Is the decision eligible for Call-in?                                                   
 

Yes  No  

 
1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues 

 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 

To consider an application for a Licence permitting the use of premises as a House in Multiple 
Occupation (HMO). 
 

Premises Application No. Applicant(s) Managing Agents 

6 Collingwood 
Avenue, Belfast, 
BT& 1QT 

10440 Mr David Daly and 
Mrs Celine Daly 

None 

 
Members are reminded that licences are issued for a 5-year period with standard conditions. 
Where it is considered necessary to do so, the Committee can also impose special conditions.   
 

2.0 Recommendations 
 

 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 

 
Taking into account the information presented Committee is asked to hear from the Applicants 
and make a decision to either: 
 

(i) Grant the application, with or without any special conditions; or 
(ii) Refuse the application.  

 
Notice of proposed decision 
 
On the 27 October 2023, pursuant to Paragraph 9 of Schedule 2 of the Houses in Multiple 
Occupation Act (Northern Ireland) 2016 (“the 2016 Act”), Officers issued a Notice of Proposed 
Decision. Appendix 2 

 

 

X 

X 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 2c



 
2.3 
 
 
 
2.4 
 
 

 
The Notice of Proposed Decision stated that the council proposed to refuse the licence on 
the grounds of overprovision. A statement of reasons for the proposal was included in the 
Notice of Proposed Decision.  
 
If the application is refused, the Applicants have a right of appeal to the County Court. An 
appeal must be lodged within 28 days of formal notification of the Council’s decision.  
 

3.0 Main report 
 

 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
 
 
 
3.6 
 
 
 
 
 
3.7 
 
 

Background 
 
The property had the benefit of an HMO licence issued by the Housing Executive in the name 
of the joint applicants which expired on 12 November 2022. Due to an administrative oversight 
a reminder letter was not sent to the applicants informing them that their licence was about to 
expire.   
 
On the 10 July 2023 an application for a new licence application was received from Mr. David 
Daly (payment received on the 1 August 2023) which was subsequently rejected on 09 August 
2023 as the Council could not be satisfied that the occupation of the living accommodation as 
an HMO would not constitute a breach of planning control 
 
On the 29 August 2023 an HMO licence application was received from the joint owners of the 
accommodation.   
 
Key Issues 
 
Pursuant to the 2016 Act, the Council may only grant a licence if it is satisfied that:  

a) the occupation of the living accommodation as an HMO would not constitute a breach 
of planning control; 

b) the owner, and any managing agent of it, are fit and proper persons;  
c) the proposed management arrangements are satisfactory); 
d) the granting of the licence will not result in overprovision of HMOs in the locality; 
e) the living accommodation is fit for human habitation and— 

(i) is suitable for occupation as an HMO by the number of persons to be specified 
in the licence, or 

(ii) can be made so suitable by including conditions in the licence. 
 
Planning 
 
As this is a new application the Council’s Planning Service was consulted. It confirmed that a 
Certificate of Lawful Existing Use or Development (“CLEUD”) was granted on 24 August 2023 
with the planning reference LA04/2023/3666/LDE 
 
Fitness 
 
When considering the fitness of an applicant the Council must have regard to any offences 
concerning fraud/ dishonesty, violence, drugs, human trafficking, firearms, sexual offences, 
unlawful discrimination in, or in connection with, the carrying on of any business; or any 
provision of the law relating to housing or of landlord and tenant law. It also permits the Council 
to take into account any other matter which the council considers to be relevant. 
 
The NIHMO Unit has consulted with the following units within the Council’s City and 
Neighbourhood Services Department – 
 

Page 12



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.8 
 
 
3.9 
 
 
 
3.10 
 
 
 
3.11 
 
 
 
 
 
3.12 
 
 
3.13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.14 
 
 
 
3.15 
 
3.16 
 
 
 
 
 

(a) Environmental Protection Unit (“EPU”) - who have confirmed that in relation to night-
time noise there has been no relevant enforcement action required in respect of the 
HMO in the last 5 years, 
 

(b) Environmental Protection Unit (“EPU”) - who have confirmed that in relation to day-
time noise there has been no relevant enforcement action required in respect of the 
HMO in the last 5 years,   

 
(c) Public Health and Housing Unit (“PHHU”) - who have confirmed that in relation to 

rubbish accumulation/filthy premises, there has been no relevant enforcement action 
required in respect of the HMO in the last 5 years, 
 

(d) Enforcement Unit (“EU”) - who have confirmed that in relation to litter and waste, there 
has been no relevant enforcement action required in respect of the HMO in the last 5 
years,   

 
The applicants have confirmed that they have not been convicted of any relevant offences as 
set out at paragraph 3.3 of this report.  
 
The Applicant has not been convicted of any HMO related offences by the Council. The EPU, 
PHHU and EU, solely in respect of their statutory functions, have confirmed that there are no 
relevant, previous convictions in respect of the Applicant, Managing Agent or occupants.  
 
Officers are not aware of any other issues relevant to the Applicant’s fitness.  
 
Overprovision 

For the purpose of Section 12(2) of the 2016 Act. The Council has determined the locality of 
the accommodation, 6 Collingwood Avenue, Belfast, BT7 1QT as being Housing 
Management Areas (HMA) “HMA 2/22 Botanic, Holylands, Rugby” as defined in the 
document Belfast City Council’s Local Development Plan Strategy “2023 Strategy” which 
was formally adopted on the 2 May 2023.  

Legal Services has advised that there is a clear requirement in section 8 of the 2016 Act 
upon the Council to be satisfied that the granting of a licence will not result in overprovision. 

In making this decision the Council has had regard to: 

(a) the number and capacity of licensed HMOs in the locality 
 

(b) the need for housing accommodation in the locality and the extent to which HMO 
accommodation is required to meet that need. 

 
To inform the Council in its consideration of the above provisions, the Council has taken 
account of the 2023 Strategy given that “Nurturing sustainable and balanced communities is 
a fundamental aim of the LDP’s housing policies.” 
 
In particular, the Council has considered Policy HOU10:- 
 
HOU10 states – “Within designated HMAs, planning permission will only be granted for 
Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMOs) and/or flats/apartments where the total number of 
HMOs and flats/apartments combined would not as a result exceed 20% of all dwelling units 
within an HMA.” 
 
 

Page 13



 
 
 
3.17 
 
 
 
3.18 
 
 
 
 
 
3.19 
 
 
3.20 
 
 
 
3.21 
 
 
 
 
 
3.22 
 
 
 
 
 
3.23 
 
 
 
 
3.24 
 
 
 

3.25 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.26 
 
 
 
 
 

(a) The number and capacity of licensed HMOs in the locality 

On the date of assessment, 17 October 2023, 90% of all dwelling units in policy area “HMA 
2/22 Botanic, Holylands, Rugby” were made up of HMOs and flats/apartments, which in turn 
exceeds the 20% development limit as set out at Policy HOU10.  

There are 1095 (45%) licensed HMOs with a capacity of 4808 persons in HMA 2/22 Botanic, 
Holylands, Rugby.  
 
(b) The need for housing accommodation in the locality and the extent to which HMO 

accommodation is required to meet that need. 

The total number of dwelling units in a HMA is measured by Ordnance Survey’s Pointer 
database. There are a total of 2409 dwelling units HMA 2/22 Botanic, Holylands, Rugby. 

The fact that the use of the property as an HMO is permitted for planning purposes is a 
relevant consideration in determining whether the grant of this licence will result in 
overprovision.  
 
The Council recognises that there is a need for intensive forms of housing and to meet this 
demand, HMOs are an important component of this housing provision. HMOs, alongside other 
accommodation options within the private rented sector, play an important role in meeting the 
housing needs of people who are single, who have temporary employment, students, low-
income households and, more recently, migrant workers. 
 
In September 2017 the Housing Executive published the document “Housing Market Analysis 
Update – Belfast City Council Area” which states “HMOs form an important element of the 
PRS, particularly for younger people on low incomes and for single people, under the age of 
35, affected by the limitation of housing benefit to the shared room rate. Anecdotal evidence 
also indicates that this has been a popular sector with migrant workers.” 
 
On the 17 October 2023 out of 29 premises available for rent within the BT7 area on the 
website PropertyNews.com there was 2 licensed HMOs which from the information 
presented on the website represented 9 bed spaces. The HMO accommodation was 
available immediately.  
 
Anecdotal evidence from previous conversations with HMO managing agents suggest that 
that there is currently a lack of HMO accommodation available in this locality. 
 
Students moving out of HMO accommodation. 
 
On the 7 December 2022 Ulster University Director of Campus Life told members of the 
Council’s City Growth and Regeneration Committee that there was an “increase in 
competition for HMO’s particularly from NIHE, Immigration Services and statutory agencies 
and there were increasing accommodation issues across the housing sector which required 
a holistic view and should include the consideration of international students, 
families and graduates looking for professional accommodation.” 
 
However, QUB Director of Student Plus confirmed to members that the current trend 
indicated a significant move of students to purpose-built student accommodation blocks. She 
told members that there were 7,000 purpose built managed student accommodation 
(PBMSA) rooms in the city – the majority built since 2018 and approximately 5,000 in the city 
centre. 
 

Page 14



3.27 
 
 
 
3.29 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.30 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.31 
 
 
 
3.32 
 
 
 
 
3.33 
 
 
 
 
3.34 
 
 
 
3.35 
 
 
 
 
 
3.36 
 
 
 
 
3.37 
 
 
 
 
 
 

November 2022 monitoring information produced by the Council’s Planning Services for 
PBMSA indicates that 2154 bedspaces are currently under construction with 646 bedspaces 
becoming operational in September 2023.  
 
With the continued expansion of the PBMSA sector and students transitioning from private 
rentals to PBMSAs, it is too early to tell whether the increased competition from non-
students for HMOs is a temporary problem (which can be managed by the contraction in 
students residing in existing HMO accommodation within the locality) or evidence of an 
emerging long-term supply issue. 
 
Section 8(2)(d) of the 2016 Act  
 
In assessing the number and capacity of licensed HMOs as well as the need for HMO 
accommodation in the locality, officers cannot be satisfied that the granting of the HMO 
licence will not result in overprovision of HMO accommodation in the locality of the 
accommodation for the purpose of section 8(2)(d) of the 2016 Act. 
 
Objections 
 
No objections were received in relation to this application. 
 
Attendance 
 
The applicant and/or their representatives will be available to discuss any matters relating to 
the licence application should they arise during your meeting.  
 
Suitability of the premises 
 
The accommodation was certified as complying with the physical standards for an HMO for 3 
persons by a technical officer from the NIHMO service, on the 22 June 2023.  
   
Notice of proposed decision 
 
On the 27 October 2023, pursuant to Paragraph 9 of Schedule 2 of the Houses in Multiple 
Occupation Act (Northern Ireland) 2016, Officers issued a Notice of Proposed Decision to the 
Applicant setting out the terms of the proposed licence. Appendix 2 
 
The Notice of Proposed Decision stated that the council proposed to refuse the licence on the 
grounds of overprovision. A statement of reasons for the proposal was included in the Notice 
of Proposed Decision.  
 
Applicant’s response to the notice of proposed decision 
 
On the 06 November 2023 officers received a response to the notice of proposed decision in 
which the Applicant provided background information into the initial purchase of the property 
and reasons for transferring the property into the Applicants name in June 2021. Appendix 
3  
 
The core of the representations relates to the Council treating the application as a new 
application which according to the application has resulted in significant financial and 
personal hardship. The applicant highlighted their previous compliance with the 
requirements of the NIHE registration scheme and the genuinely unintentional oversight in 
renewing the licence on time.  The applicant also refers to overprovision and that what they 
refer to as the Council’s aim to reduce the number of HMO properties in the area.  
 

Page 15



 

3.38 
 
 
 
 
3.39 
 
 
 
 
3.40 
 

Officers acknowledged receipt of the representations on the 06 November 2023. Appendix 4  
 
 
Financial and Resource Implications 
 
None. The cost of assessing the application and officer inspections are provided for within 
existing budgets. 
 
Equality and Good Relations Implications 
 
There are no equality or good relations issues associated with this report. 

 Appendices – Documents Attached 
 

 Appendix 1 – Location Map 
Appendix 2 – Notice of Proposed Decision. 
Appendix 3 – Response to Notice of Proposed Decision. 
Appendix 4 – Officers acknowledgement of representations made in response to the Notice 
of Proposed Decision 
 

Page 16



Appendix 1 – External Photograph and Location Map – 6 Collingwood Avenue, Belfast, BT7 1QT  

 

  

  

 

 

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 6
of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 6
of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 6
of the Local Government Act (Northern Ireland) 2014.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1d Schedule of Meetings 2024
	2a Licences Issued Under Delegated Authority
	2b HMO Licences Issued Under Delegated Authority
	2c Application for a New Licence to operate a House of Multiple Occupation for 6 Collingwood Avenue
	Appendix 1 - Location plan
	RESTRICTED Appendix 2 - Proposed decision
	RESTRICTED Appendix 3 - Response to Notice of Proposed Decision
	RESTRICTED Appendix 4 - Officers acknowledgement of representations made in response to the Notice of Proposed Decision


